


Baker County Library District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, Aug 10, 2015 6:00 – 8:00pm 

 

Page 1 of 4 

Call To Order 
 

Kyra Rohner-Ingram, Vice-President called the meeting to order at 6:10pm.  The 
meeting was held in the Riverside meeting room.  Four of five Directors were 
present including: Kyra Rohner-Ingram, Betty Palmer, Nellie Forrester, and Della 
Steele. Others present were Perry Stokes, Library Director; and Christine Hawes, 
Business Manager.  Gary Dielman was contacted and was unable to attend the 
meeting. 

Agenda Approved 
 

Rohner-Ingram asked for additions or changes to the agenda.  None were 
proposed. 

Minutes Approved 
 

Rohner-Ingram asked for corrections to the minutes.  There were no changes 
suggested.  Steele made a motion to approve both the Agenda and the July13, 
2015 Regular Meeting Minutes as presented; Forrester seconded; motion 
passed (3 yea; 1 abstain, Palmer abstained as she was not present at the 
meeting). 

Conflicts or potential 
conflict of interest 

Rohner-Ingram asked if there were any potential conflicts of interest to be 
declared.  There were none. 

Public Comment 
 

Rohner-Ingram noted that there were no members of the public present for 
comments.  Stokes said that he received a telephone call from a patron who 
commended staff for exceptional service including Connie Lewis (part-time 
staff), Sylvia Bowers, and Melissa Shafer.  He encouraged the caller to submit 
the names for the Exceptional Service Award to the Chamber and the patron 
expressed interest in doing so. 

Previous Business: 
Confirm September 
board meeting 
cancelled 
 

Rohner-Ingram moved to the next agenda item, confirmation of cancelling the 
September board meeting.  Stokes said that at the July meeting Dielman wanted 
to discuss this at the August meeting, so he has included it on the agenda.   

The September board meeting is listed as cancelled in the annual resolution that 
was adopted and posted on the website.  The reason for the cancellation is that 
Stokes will be on vacation during that time.  However, the board can elect to 
have the meeting.  After a short discussion, Rohner-Ingram stated for the record 
that the board concurred that the September meeting will remain cancelled.  
Rohner-Ingram and Forrester will be attending an SDAO training that day in 
Baker City; both agreed to stop by the Library to sign checks for accounts 
payable.  Hawes will send an email reminder. 

Annual/ Recurring 
Business: 
Appointing agents of 
record 

Stokes said that the District is required to annually appoint its insurance agent of 
record.  The District has one agent, Clarke & Clarke Insurance, which assists the 
District with its general liability and property insurance as well as the group 
health insurance.   Currently group health insurance is acquired through Special 
Districts Association of Oregon.  Clarke & Clarke have consistently been very 
helpful.  The resolution confirms the company as the district’s agent of record 
for the coming year.  Palmer made a motion to adopt Clarke & Clarke 
Insurance as Agent of Record as stated in Resolution No. 2015-16.002; 
Forrester seconded; motion passed unanimously. 



Baker County Library District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, Aug 10, 2015 6:00 – 8:00pm 

 

Page 2 of 4 

New Business: 
Revised fines and 
fee schedule 

Stokes reviewed the Fee Schedule changes.  He has added guidelines allowing a 
patron to bring in a replacement item for lost or damaged materials.  Palmer 
asked if this was a new policy.  Stokes responded that it has been standard 
practice though not been stipulated in policy.  Patrons do commonly inquire 
about submitting items themselves in lieu of payment. A new official amount of 
$35 is listed for a returned checks charge in to recover bank charges and 
processing fee.  Under replacement cards, more detail is added for printing and 
copying in different available paper sizes.  Under Research Fees, Stokes wanted 
to clarify that regular patrons are not charged for the first 15 minutes of 
research assistance, but after that the fees are applicable.  Research fees are 
generally only applied to out-of-county residents needing time consuming 
assistance.  The Research Fee amount is increased from $25 to $50 per hour to 
cover actual costs when considering wages, benefits, and the opportunity cost 
of the person's time. The amount is based on administrative staff costs since 
they are the ones to respond to such inquiries. Rohner-Ingram asked for further 
comments.  There were none.  Forrester made a motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 2015-16.003 Revising fines & fee schedule and its stated attachment; 
Palmer seconded; motion passed unanimously. 

New Public Records 
Policy 

Stokes said that Special Districts recommends agencies establish a Public 
Records Policy.  The most commonly requested requests received are for 
content made available on the district’s website including budgets, audits, 
minutes, board packets, and policies.  Recently, a novel request was submitted 
for the District’s purchase order history which the board discussed at the June 
2015 meeting.  Having a policy allows the district to recover staff time & 
materials costs for fulfilling the request.  This policy states that the district 
follows public record law.  Procedures were reviewed.  Rohner-Ingram asked 
what was meant by “analog records”.  Stokes said this meant records that are 
still only available in printed format--those not “born digital” or not yet digitized.  
There was no further discussion.  Steele made a motion to approve the Public 
Records Policy as presented and adopt Resolution No. 2015-16.004 Revising 
adopting Public Records Policy; Palmer seconded; motion passed unanimously. 

Administrative 
Reports: 
Director’s Report 
 

Stokes started with reporting that the Friends Miner’s Jubilee book sale went 
well and netted about the same as previous years, he estimated $2,500.  Hawes 
will issue a check to give the Friends the Visa sales on the next check run.   At 
the Sage Council July meeting he had hoped to pass the baton of the Chair 
position, but there were no volunteers or nominations so must continue to 
serve until a replacement can be found.  Sage continues to operate well, he said.  
Under Facilities & Vehicles, the Bookmobile is in the repair shop.  It missed runs 
this past week but is expected to resume this week’s runs. Carpet cleaning – 
Stokes is taking bids from local carpet cleaning companies about servicing the 
library carpets. He has reduced use of steam cleaners since they contribute to  
“bubbling” in various places where the carpet has lost adhesion to the floor.  
Under Grants, he will be applying to Leo Adler to re-place the vinyl graphics on 



Baker County Library District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, Aug 10, 2015 6:00 – 8:00pm 

 

Page 3 of 4 

the Bookmobile.  He will be looking into the costs of graphics application and is 
exploring options for development of a new library logo.  In Personnel, the 
Bookmobile part-time position has been advertised in the Baker City Herald, 
listed with the Employment office, and posted for the staff and public.  An on-
call substitute staff position is also advertised for occasional help with the front 
desk shifts.   In Programs, the Summer Reading Program will wrap up this 
week.  The carnival will once again be held in the North Baker gym from 9:00-
11:00am.  It worked very well there last year.  The gym location allows several 
advantages over having the event in the library parking lot, such as prior day set 
up and more safety for participants.  He invited the board members to come 
observe or volunteer.  
 
Stokes has begun compiling data for the annual Oregon State Library statistical 
report, due Oct 1 2015. 
 
Rohner-Ingram added a comment on the Children’s area and staff.  For parents, 
it can be challenging to find books and manage young children at the same time.  
Recently, staff person Diana Pearson helped her son find a book and spent time 
engaging him in conversation.  She really appreciated the good service. 
 

Business Manager’s 
Report 
 

Christine distributed the financial statements and a Cash Flow Projection report 
with check packets to board members.  The General Fund received tax turnovers 
of $3,516.92 in August.  The June turnover of $1,395.28 that had been reported 
missing last month to the Baker County Treasurer was deposited on July 13.   E-
Rate refund revenues totaling $2,189.97 have been received with one vendor 
refund remaining outstanding.  These refunds are for the recent six month 
period, January through June 2015.     
 
In Personnel, the PERS line is high because it includes the June payment.   June 
will be accrued into the prior year where it belongs, so PERS contributions are 
current.  Under Materials & Services, the book budget includes checks to Ingram 
$1,417.48, Junior Library Guild $2,895.00 monthly shipments of children’s 
books, Tutor.com $2,187.50 annual homework help subscription and Perma-
Bound $190.94 the balance of a children’s book order.  Building Maintenance 
includes checks for Alpine Alarm $270.00 to replace an outside security camera 
and Whelan Electric $1,201.60 for the initial wiring adjustment in preparation 
for the Richland AC unit.  Other checks included Tim McMillan $960 that 
included additional janitorial services for Miner’s Jubilee weekend, Open DNS 
$800 a filtering software, Idaho Library Association $165 for Perry to attend a 
conference and Movie Licensing $416 annual site license.  The Visa bill will be 
paid on the next check run.  The General Fund current cash balance is 
$104,670.44.   
 
Hawes asked the group to look at the Cash Flow Projection report; the report 



Baker County Library District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, Aug 10, 2015 6:00 – 8:00pm 

 

Page 4 of 4 

starts with the current cash and estimates upcoming expenses through first of 
November.  With the cash on hand and the funds available in Other Funds, she 
projects the District will not need a Tax Anticipation Note this year.   
 
Other Funds highlights include a deposit of $156.93 from accumulated cash 
donations received from the “piggy bank” at the front counter; July online book 
sales were $334.07, these revenues seem to be picking up again. The Account 
Receivable with Philip Charette is now complete; the final $100 payment was 
made on July 7, 2015. 
 
The Sage Fund received two grant reimbursements totaling $37,739.84.  These 
funds are deposited into the General Fund and have to be transferred by check 
to the Sage checking account.  The Direct Deposit Authorization submitted for 
the Ready-2-Read Grant over a year ago to the State is also used by the State 
Library for sending their grant payments.  The Sage Fund current cash balance is 
$75,897.37. 
 
Hawes thanked Rohner-Ingram for being available to sign checks last week when 
Dielman was unavailable.  Rohner-Ingram was also added to the Sage Fund 
checking account to have a third available check signer on that account.  
 
Checks were signed and returned to Hawes along with the Approved Bills Lists 
that had been initialed by those present. 
 

Next Meeting Date 
 

The next Board meeting will be October 12, 2015.  Potential agenda items 
include Personnel Policy revisions, a proposal for sick leave benefits to part-time 
staff, and a Code of Conduct revision. 
 

Adjourn 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes, 
Secretary to the Board 
 
PS/ch 

 
 


